

Exhibit B
BUDGET DETAIL AND PAYMENT PROVISIONS

1. Medical Assistance Payment Provisions

The Department will reimburse the Contractor for Specialty Mental Health Services provided pursuant to the requirements in Exhibit A to this contract, based upon a fee schedule developed by the Department and specified in the approved Medicaid State plan and waivers. ~~This program may be funded using one or more of the following funding sources: funds distributed to the counties from the Mental Health Subaccount, the Mental Health Equity Subaccount, and the Vehicle License Collection Account of the Local Revenue Fund, funds from the Mental Health Account and the Behavioral Health Subaccount of the Local Revenue Fund 2011, funds from the Mental Health Services Fund, and any other funds from which the Controller makes distributions to the counties in compliance with applicable statute and regulations including Welf. & Inst. Code §§ 5891, 5892 and 14705(a)(2). These funding sources may be used by the Contractor to pay for services and then certify as public expenditures in order to be reimbursed federal funds.~~

2. Budget Contingency Clause

This provision is a supplement to provision number nine (Federal Contract Funds) in Exhibit D(F) which is attached hereto as part of this Contract.

A. Federal Budget

If federal funding for FFP reimbursement in relation to this contract is eliminated or substantially reduced by Congress, the Department and the Contractor each shall have the option either to cancel this contract or to propose a contract amendment to address changes to the program required as a result of the elimination or reduction of federal funding.

B. Delayed Federal Funding

The Contractor and the Department agree to consult with each other on interim measures for program operation that may be required to maintain adequate services to members ~~beneficiaries~~ in the event that there is likely to be a delay in the availability of federal funding.

3. Federal Financial Participation

Nothing in this contract shall limit the Contractor's ability to submit claims for appropriate FFP reimbursement ~~based on actual, total fund expenditures~~ for any

Exhibit B
BUDGET DETAIL AND PAYMENT PROVISIONS

covered services, or quality assurance and, utilization review, Medi-Cal Administrative Activities and/or administrative costs. In accordance with the ~~Welf. & Inst. Code section 14705(c)~~, the Contractor shall ensure compliance with all requirements necessary for Medi-Cal reimbursement for these services and activities, **including the requirements in Welfare & Institutions (W&I) Code, section 14184.403.** Claims for FFP reimbursement shall be submitted by the Contractor to the Department for adjudication throughout the fiscal year. ~~Pursuant to the Welf. & Inst. Code § 14705(d), the Contractor shall certify to the state that it has incurred public expenditures prior to requesting the reimbursement of federal funds.~~

4. Audits and Recovery of Overpayments

- A. Pursuant to Welf. & Inst. Code section 14707, in the case of federal audit exceptions, the Department will follow federal audit appeal processes unless the Department, in consultation with the County Behavioral Health Director's Association of California, determines that those appeals are not cost beneficial.
- 1) Whenever there is a final federal audit exception against the State resulting from a claim for expenditure of federal funds ~~for an expenditure~~ by individual counties that is not federally allowable, the department may offset federal reimbursement and request the Controller's office to offset the distribution of funds to the Contractor from the Mental Health Subaccount, the Mental Health Equity Subaccount and the Vehicle License Collection Account of the Local Revenue Fund; funds from the Mental Health Account and the Behavioral Health Subaccount of the Local Revenue Fund 2011; and any other mental health realignment funds from which the Controller makes distributions to the counties by the amount of the exception. The Department shall provide evidence to the Controller that the county had been notified of the amount of the audit exception no less than 30 days before the offset is to occur.
 - 2) The Department will involve the Contractor in developing responses to any draft federal audit reports that directly impact the county.
- B. Pursuant to W&I Code section 14718(b)(2), the Department may offset the amount of any federal disallowance, audit exception, or overpayment against subsequent claims from the Contractor.

Exhibit B
BUDGET DETAIL AND PAYMENT PROVISIONS

~~1) The Department may offset the amount of any state disallowance, audit exception, or overpayment for fiscal years through and including 2010-11 against subsequent claims from the Contractor.~~

- 1) Offsets may be done at any time, after the department has invoiced or otherwise notified the Contractor about the audit exception, disallowance, or overpayment. The Department shall determine the amount that may be withheld from each payment to the mental health plan.
- 2) The maximum withheld amount shall be 25 percent of each payment as long as the Department is able to comply with the federal requirements for repayment of FFP pursuant to 42 United States Code (U.S.C.) §1396b(d)(2)). The Department may increase the maximum amount when necessary for compliance with federal laws and regulations.

- C. Pursuant to the W&I Code section 14170 and 42 C.F.R. section 438.602, ~~cost reports~~ data submitted to the Department are subject to audit in the manner and form prescribed by the Department. ~~The year-end cost report shall include both Contractor's costs and the costs of its subcontractors, if any. Contractor and its subcontractors shall be subject to audits and/or reviews, including client record reviews, by the Department. In accordance with the W&I Code § 14170, any audit of Contractor's cost report~~ data shall occur within three years of the date of receipt by the Department of the final cost report with signed certification by the Contractor's Mental Health Director or an individual who has delegated authority to sign for, and reports directly to the Contractor's Mental Health Director. ~~and one of the following: (1) the Contractor's Chief Financial Officer (or equivalent), (2) an individual who has delegated authority to sign for, and reports directly to the Contractor's Chief Financial Officer, or (3) the county auditor controller, or equivalent.~~ A signatures is are required before the data ~~it the cost report~~ shall be considered final. For purposes of this section, the ~~cost report~~ data shall be considered audited once the Department has informed the Contractor of its intent to make adjustments ~~disallow costs on the cost report~~, or once the Department has informed the Contractor of its intent to close the audit without disallowances.

Exhibit B
BUDGET DETAIL AND PAYMENT PROVISIONS

- D. If the adjustments result in the Department owing FFP payments to the Contractor, the Department shall submit a claim to the federal government for the related FFP within 30 days contingent upon sufficient budget authority.

5. Claims Adjudication Process

- A. ~~In accordance with the Welf. & Inst. Code section 14705(c), claims~~
Pursuant to W&I Code section 14184.403, claims for Medicaid
~~reimbursement federal funds in reimbursement for services shall comply~~
with eligibility and service requirements under applicable federal and state law.
- B. The Contractor shall certify each claim submitted to the Department in accordance with Cal. Code Regs., tit. 9, section 1840.112 and 42 C.F.R. section 433.51, at the time the claims are submitted to the Department. ~~The Contractor's Chief Financial Officer or their equivalent, or an individual with authority delegated by the county auditor-controller, shall sign the certification, declaring, under penalty of perjury, that the Contractor has incurred an expenditure to cover the services included in the claims to satisfy the requirements for FFP. The Contractor's Mental Health Director or an individual with authority delegated by the Mental Health Director shall sign the certification, declaring, under penalty of perjury that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, the claim is in all respects true, correct, and in accordance with the law and meets the requirements of Cal. Code Regs., tit. 9, section 1840.112(b)~~ **and 42 C.F.R. sections 438.604 and 438.606.** The Contractor shall have mechanisms that support the Mental Health Director's certification, including the certification that the services for which claims were submitted were actually provided to the ~~member~~
beneficiary. If the Department requires additional information from the Contractor that will be used to establish Department payments to the Contractor, the Contractor shall certify that the additional information provided is in accordance with 42 C.F.R. section 438.604.
- C. **The Contractor shall certify that any funds transferred to the Department by the Contractor qualify for federal financial participation pursuant to 42 CFR section 433.51, any other applicable federal Medicaid laws, and the CalAIM Special Terms and Conditions, and are not derived from impermissible sources such as recycled**

Exhibit B
BUDGET DETAIL AND PAYMENT PROVISIONS

Medicaid payments, Federal money excluded from use as State match, impermissible taxes, and non-bona fide provider-related donations. Impermissible sources do not include revenue relating to patient care or other revenue received from federal health care programs to the extent that the program revenue is not obligated to the State as the source of funding.

The Contractor shall certify each claim submitted to the Department in accordance with 9 California Code of Regulations (CCR), section 1840.112 and 42 CFR sections 438.604, 438.606 and 438.608. The Contractor's Mental Health Director or an individual with authority delegated by the Mental Health Director shall sign the certification, declaring under penalty of perjury that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, the claim in all respects is true, correct, and in accordance with the law and meets the requirements of 9 CCR section 1840.112 and 42 CFR sections 438.604 and 438.606. The Contractor shall have mechanisms that support the Mental Health Director's certification, including the certification that the services for which claims were submitted were actually provided to the member. If the Department requires additional information from the Contractor that will be used to establish Department payments to the Contractor, the Contractor shall certify that the additional information provided is in accordance with 42 CFR, section 438.604.

- D. Claims not meeting federal and/or state requirements shall be returned to Contractor as not approved for payment, along with a reason for denial. Claims meeting all Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) transaction requirements and any other applicable federal or state privacy laws or regulations and certified by the Contractor in accordance with Cal. Code Regs., tit. 9, §1840.112 **subsections (a), (b), and (d),** shall be processed for adjudication.
- E. Good cause justification for late claim submission is governed by applicable federal and state laws and regulations and is subject to approval by the Department.
- F. In the event that the Department or the Contractor determines that changes requiring a change in the Contractor's or Department's obligation must be made relating to either the Department's or the Contractor's claims submission and adjudication systems due to federal or state law

Exhibit B
BUDGET DETAIL AND PAYMENT PROVISIONS

changes or business requirements, both the Department and the Contractor agree to provide notice to the other party as soon as practicable prior to implementation. This notice shall include information and comments regarding the anticipated requirements and impacts of the projected changes. The Department and the Contractor agree to meet and discuss the design, development, and costs of the anticipated changes prior to implementation.

~~G. The Contractor shall comply with Cal. Code Regs., tit. 9, § 1840.304, when submitting claims for FFP for services billed by individual or group providers. The Contractor shall submit service codes from the Health Care Procedure Coding System (HCPCS) published in the most current Mental Health Medi-Cal billing manual.~~

6. Payment Data Certification

The Contractor shall certify the data it provides to the Department to be used in determining payment of FFP to the Contractor, in accordance with 42 C.F.R. sections 438.604 and 438.606.

7. System Changes

In the event changes in federal or state law or regulations, including court decisions and interpretations, necessitate a change in either the fiscal or program obligations or operations of the Contractor or the Department, or a change in obligation for the cost of providing **payment of** covered services the Department and the Contractor agree to negotiate, pursuant to the W&I Code section 14714(c) regarding (a) changes required to remain in compliance with the new law or changes in existing obligations, (b) projected programmatic and fiscal impacts, (c) necessary contract amendments. To the extent that contract amendments are necessary, the parties agree to act to ensure appropriate amendments are made to accommodate any changes required by law or regulation.

8. Administrative Reimbursement

A. The Contractor may submit claims for reimbursement of Medical Administrative Activities (MAA) pursuant to W&I Code section 14132.47. The Contractor shall not submit claims for MAA unless it has submitted a claiming plan to the Department which was approved by the Department

Exhibit B
BUDGET DETAIL AND PAYMENT PROVISIONS

and is effective during the quarter in which the costs being claimed were incurred. In addition, the Contractor shall not submit claims for reimbursements of MAA that are not consistent with the Contractor's approved MAA claiming plan. The Contractor shall not use the relative value methodology to report its MAA costs on the year-end cost report. Rather, the Contractor shall calculate and report MAA units on the cost report by multiplying the amount of time (minutes, hours, etc.) spent on MAA activities by the salary plus benefits of the staff performing the activity and then allocating indirect administrative and other appropriately allocated costs.

- B. ~~Pursuant to the Welf. & Inst. Code § 14711(c),~~ Administrative costs shall be claimed separately in a manner consistent with federal Medicaid requirements and the approved **Medical Assistance Program Cost Allocation** ~~Medicaid state plans and waivers and~~ shall be limited to 15 percent of the total actual **payments for** ~~cost of~~ direct client services. The cost of performing quality assurance and utilization review activities shall be reimbursed separately and shall not be included in administrative costs.

9. Notification of Request for Contract Amendment

In addition to the provisions in Exhibit E, Additional Provisions, both parties agree to notify the other party whenever an amendment to this contract is to be requested so that informal discussion and consultation can occur prior to a formal amendment process.